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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S R.ESFONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of couNTRY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION is responsible
for the preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the year ended December 31, 2OZl, in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein, and for such intemal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or eror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors or Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors or Trustees reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

Banaria, Banaria and Company, CPAs, the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has

audited the financial statements of the Company in zrccordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing and in its report to the stockholders or mernbers, has expressed its opinion on the faimess
ofpresentation upon completion ofsuch audit.
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BANARIA, BANARIA AND COMPANY
Certified Pu blic Accou ntants

BOtuPRC Reg. No.0030
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SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
COUNTRY BANKBRS LIFB INSURANCE CORPORATION
Country Bankers Centre,648 T. M.I(alaw Avenue
Ermita, Manila

We have audited the financial statements of COUNTRY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE
CORPORATION, INC. for the year ended December 3 1,2021, on which we have rendered the

attaclred report dated April 16,2022.

In compliance with the Revised SRC Rule 68, we are stating that the above Company has

one hundred one (101) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares each.

B.ANARIA, BANARIA AND COMPANY, CPAS

By: GRACIA
Parlner

ARIA-ESPIRITU

CPA Certificate No. 27621
Tax Identification No. 13 1-93 8-548
PTR No. 2564458-D, January 26,2022, Quezon City
CTC No. 07519974, January 26,2022, Quezon City
BOA Accreditation No. 0030, valid until August 20,2024 (Firm)
BIR Accreditation No. 07-000408-003-2020, valid untilJuly ro,2oz3 (Firm)
BIR Accreditation No. 07-0004 t2-003-2020, valid until July 16,2023 (partner)
IC Accreditatior.r No. 27621-rc, valid until october 2i,2oz4 (partner)
IC Accreditation No. F-2019-003-R, valid untilJuly lj,2022 (Finn)

April 16,2022

10 Scout Bayoran Street, South Triangle, Diliman, Quezon City 1103

a

Tel Nos.: 3415-5911; 8372-4281 and 82 / Fax No.: 8372 -4280 lErnait: banaria_cpas@yahoo.com



fr&co.- BANARIA, BANARIA AND COMPANY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR.S' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
COUNTRY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
Country Bankers Centre,648 T.M. Kalaw Avenue
Ermita, Manila

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of COLT.{TRY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE
CORPORATION, INC. ("the Company"), which comprise the statements of financial position

as of December 31,2021 and2020, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in stockholders' equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended,

and notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,

tlre financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial
perfonnance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial

Repofting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).

Our responsibilities under those standards are furlher described in Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Philippine Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (PESBA Code)

together with the ethical requirements in the Philippines, the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other etliical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we lrave obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of tlie financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as

management deterrnines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from rnaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, rnanagement is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concenl
and using the going collcem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Tl-rose charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from effor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

a

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of managemeut's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
unceftainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to
modifu our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identifu during our audit.

a

o

a

@
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits.

Report on Legal and Other Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 26 to financial statements is

presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not required part of
the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of
management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic

financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

BANARIA, B.A.NARIA AND COMPANY, CPAS

Bv: GRACIA RA BANARIA-ESPIRITU
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 21621
Tax Identification No. I 3 I -93 8-548
PTR No. 2564458-D, January 26,2022, Quezon City
CTC No. 075'79974, January 26,2022, Quezon City
BOA Accreditation No. 0030, valid until August 20,2024 (Firm)
BIR Accreditation No. 07-000408-003-2020, valid until July 10,2023 (Firm)
BIR Accreditation No. 07-000412-003-2020, valid until July 16,2023 (Partner)
IC Accreditation No. 27621-IC, valid until October 27,2024 (Partner)
IC Accreditation No. F-2019-003-R, valid untilJuly 17,2022 (Firm)

1 B APR 2022
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COUNTRY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020

(All Amounts in Philippine Peso)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Insurance balance receivables

Accounts and other receivables

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Other current assets

Total

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Avai lable-for-sale fi nancial assets

Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets

Investment properly

Property and equipment, net

Other non-current assets

Total

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

7

8

9

12

10

202 I 2020

P 180,543,648.69

336,205,345.51

14,367,469.29

319,929,7 64;71

3,529,074.03

245,296,855.t8

308,040,981 .51

14,674,798.63

37,045,191.81

3,673,673.96

P

854,575,242.23 608,731 ,501 .09

11

12

l3
l4
15

91,388,925.76

310,080,737.94

136,559,560.00

81,498,504.64

36,572,435.61

79,447 ,158.36
598,641 ,548.77
122,940,800.00

77,028,469.04

15,206,825.79

656, I 00,1 63.95 893,264,801.96

P 1,510,675,406.18 P 1,501,996,303.05

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Policy and contract liabili
Other current I iabi lities

Total

6

1

P | 11 ,365,187 .19

127,243,927.55

1 03,368,610.07

98,306,460.77

P,/ l!

I

1
n
U APR 2022

238,609,115.34 201 ,67 5 ,07 0 .84

L)ULtN
NON-CURRENT LIABILITI

Pension benefi t obligation
Aggregate reserve for life policies and contracts

S

r8

l9
7,740,148.00

278,690,976.00

14,793,177.0A

299,167,364.20

Total 286,431,124.00 3 1 3.96 I ,141 .20

TOTAL LIABILITIES 525,040,239.34 515,636,212.04

roTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Exhibit C) 985,635, I 66.84 986,360,091 .01

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITY P I 10,67 5,406.19 P 1,501,996.303.05

(See accompanying notes to the financial statements)

EXHIBIT A

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EOUITY

rii\

ECTI



COUNTRY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31,2021 and 2020

(All Amounts in Philippine Peso)

Note 202 I 2020

L'NDERWzuTING INCOME
Premiums and other income

Creditors'group life
Group term premiums

Group mortgage redemption insurance

Life
Supplementary contracts

Total

lncrease (decrease) in due and uncollected

pren-riums and annuify considerations

Total underwriting income

LINDERWRITING EXPENSES

Benefits paid or provided

lncrease (decrease) in legal policy reserves

Policy claims and losses

Cash surrender value

Maturity benefits

Pure endowment

Total

Insurance expenses

Commissions

Premium and documentary stamp taxes

Medical and inspection fees

Total

Production expenses

Total underwriting expenses

NET LTl\] DE,RWRITINC INCOME(
Other incorne, net

Total underrvriting and other income

General and administrative expenses

NCOME(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Provision lbr incorne tax

lncome tax benefit (expense)

INCOME(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (To Exhibit C)

o'rHER COMPREHENSIVE TNCOME (LOSS)

Unrealized gain(loss) on available for sale financial asse

Revaluation increment on properties

Remeasurement of pension benefit obligation
Revaluation reserve - real estate

Renreasurenrent of life ir-rsurance reserve

'l'otul

1'OTAL COMpREHENSTVE TNCOME(LOSS)

P 346,471,242.08
120,062,302.74

19,655,677.98

8,028,432.76

342,125,799.87
110,215,',l60.09

16,t27,968.50

3,632,3 83.68

1,200.00

P

800.00

494,2t9,455.56

t'1,673,921.62

472,103,112.14

295 729.50 )

5 l 1,893,377.1 8 47 t ,807 ,382.64

( 9,7 59,380.67

432,564,740.16

1,428,130.8 I

9,688,34 r .55

22,4'7 5,490.65

30r,963,200.39

7,603,535.03

8,654,360.66

r52,432.89

21

( 433,92 1,83 1 .85 ) ( 295,898,038.32 )

47 ,892,5'73.42
9,568,972.39

95,059.78

52529,35',7.88

9,877,181.25

71 7 59.40

62,478,304.53 )5T 05.59

J 05.90 ( 41,368,001.95 )

.34 ( 399,744,344.80 )

)

)

)

)

52

24(

I 6, I 35,466. I 6

30,465,094.76

14.329,628.60

101,404,496.30 ) (

72,063,03"t.84

3l I 69,093.04

1 03,232,1 30.88

83,855,1 20.3 5 )

25

l5

87,07_4,867.70 )

24,010,746.11

63,064,12t.59 )

23,614,809.72

5,177 ,605.t7
9,211,0i5.00

r3,6 r8,760.00

10,71 7,007.53

62,33 9,197.42

(P 724,924.t',l

1 9,377,0 1 0.53

2,276,421.01

888,673.64

16.2 r I ,915.82

ll
t4
l8
IJ

20

r,929,680.00

I ,25 I ,83 5.70

28,084, r 08.00

23,827 ,624.71 )

<1 ia 9,57'1.01 )

) (P 36,377 ,661.19 )

2e (P I .87 )P 0.48

BII RR6 EANiLA
rDc l9 I0t{00,stfi fitc0LAs@i t\ t!_

22

20ui 0 APR

SS) ULt;()tir\tllrlN €

EARN INGS(LOSS) PER SHARE

(See accompanying notes to the financial statements)

EXHIBIT B
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COUNTRY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31,2021 and2020
(All Amounts in Philippine Peso)

Note 2021

CAPITAL STOCK
Authorized - 50,000,000 common shares

at Pl0 par value per share

Subscribed and paid-up - 33,800,996 common shares

CONTzuBUTED SURPLUS

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance - beginning
Prior period adjustment

Adjusted balance - beginning

Income(Loss) for the year (Exhibit B)

Balance - end

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale hnancial assets

Balance - beginning

Fair value adjustment

Balance - end

Remeasurement of pension benefit obligation

Balance - beginning

Remeasurement of DB liabiliry

Balance - end

Revaluation surplus

Balance - beginning

Revaluation reserve - real properly

Revaluation increment on properties

Balance - end

Remeasurement of life insurance reserve

Balance - beginning
Remeasurement of life insurance reserve

Balance - end

Total

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITy (To Exhibit A)

2020

20P338,009,960.00P338,009,960.00

347,898,220.18 347,898,220.18

793,990,884.43 135,814,837.54

41,964,131.07

20

20

(

193,990,884.43

63,064,121.59 )

l'77,778,968.61

16 ,211 ,91 5 .82

130 926,762.84

25,654,481.04

23,614,809.12

193,990,884.43

23 ,724,801 .04

I ,929,680,00

il

18

t3

t4

49,269,290.16 25,654,481.04

28,084,108.00 )
9,211,015.00 ( zt,oaa,tos.oo I

( 18,873,093.00 ) ( 28,084,108.00 )

123 ,526,559 .57

r 3,6 r 8,760.00

5,117 ,605.t7

122,27 4,'723 .8'7

r,25 r,835.70

142,322,924.14 123 526,559.57

( 14,635,906.2 t ) 9,191,71 8.50

23 ,827 ,624.7 1 )t0 711 007.s3 (

( 3,918 898.68

168,800,223.92

) ( 14,635,906.21 )

106,461,026.40

29P

P 985,635,166.84 P 986,360,091 .01

29.16 P 29.18
BOOK VALUE PER SHARE

(See accompanying notes to the financial statements)

EXHIBIT C
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COUNTRY BANKERS LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31,2021 and 2020
(All Amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 202 1 2020

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) for the year (Exhibit B)
Adjustments for non-cash ffansactions:

Depreciation and amortization

Prior period adjustment

Net adjustment on properly and equipment

Other non-current assets

Pension benefit obligation

Gain on sale of transportation equipment

Deferred tax asset

Remeasurement of life insurance reserve

Aggregate reserve for life policies and contracts

Operating income (loss) before changes in working capital

Decrease (increase) in:

Insurance balance receivables

Accounts and other receivables

Other current assets

Increase (decrease) in :

Policy and contract liabilities
Income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceed from return of AFS financial statements

Proceeds from retirement of HTM investments

Purchase of HTM investments

Acquisition of properry and equipment

Additional cost of computer system

Net cash used in investing activities

Adjustment on properly and equipment

Net adjusted cash provided by (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additional contributed surplus

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END

(P 63,064,t21.59 ) P 16,211,915.82

14,15

20

t4
l5
l8
l4
l5
19

19

8

9

l0

(

(

(

5,982,652,07

9,211,015.00
5,177 ,605.17
2,956,966.99
7 ,053,629,00 )

24,010,746.11 )

10,7 17 ,007 .53

20,4'76,388.20 )

5,319,440.11

5,4s0,557.00

2,510,663.36

2,601,825.22

6,325,365.00

3 50,000.00

22,47s,490.6s )

( 80,5s9,638.14 ) 4,693,161 .86

1,785,s80.00 )
2,607 ,700.46 )
l,'762,482.01 )

( 28,164,364.00 ) (

301,329.34 (

144,659.93 (

l6
25

17

7,996,577.72 6,029,265.26 )

2,056,084.29 )
3,856,283.7 5?R qt7 466'7q

( 71,337,968.36 ) ( 5,691,666.41 )

(
(

1l

t2

12

l4
15

14(

n,673,042.32
337 ,410,523.37
331 ,734,285 .44

4.506,965.21

r,079,948.00

213,08r,946.15
( 309,000,53 1.36 )
( 2,430,872.43 )
( 1,306,437.30 )

11,762,367.04 (

5,177 ,605 .17 ) (
99,655,894.94 )
2,510,663.38 )

6,584,761.87 ( 102,166,559.32 )

100 00

( 64,753,206.49 ) ( 7,858,224.73 )

245,296,955.19 253,155,079.91

P I 80,543, 649.69 P 245 96 855. l 8

20

(See accompanying notes to the financial statements)

EXHIBIT D
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COUNTRY BAITI(ERS LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATBMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020
(All Amounts in Philippine Peso)

NOTE 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 In General

Country Bankers Life Insurance Corporation (the "Company"), was incorporated in the

Philippines on March 28, 1965 under SEC Reg. No. 26586 primarily to carry on the

business of life insurance in all its Companies and in particular to grant or effect assurance

of all kinds, for the payment of money by way of single payment or by way of several
payments, or by way of immediate of deferred annuities upon the death or upon attaining a

given age by any person or persons subject or not to such death or attainment ofa given age

happening in the lifetime of any other person or persons, or upon the birth or failure of issue

or subjectto or upon the happening ofany contingency or event dependent upon human life
or upon a fixed or certain date irrespective ofany such event or contingency.

The Company reached its maximum of fifty (50) legal years of existence, and it was

extended for an additional fifty (50) years by majority vote of the Board of Directors and by
the vote of at least two-thirds of the members of the Company. The additional fifty (50)
years life extension was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
Marclr 21,2014.

The Company's major stockholder is Jose E. Desiderio & Co.,Inc. who owns 35.32% of its
outstanding shares.

The registered office address of the Company is located at Country Bankers Centre,
648 T.M. Kalaw Avenue, Ermita, Manila

TIre Company has 105 employees as of December 31,2021 and2020

1.2 Approval of Financial Staternents

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,2O2l
(including the comparative for the year ended December 31,2020) were approved and
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on April 16,2022.

NOTE 2 STATUS OF OPERATION

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
which contemplate the realization of assets and settlemeni of liabilitieiin t[e normal course
of business.

Page 1 of59



SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarized below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance with Phil ippine Financial Reportin g Standards

This is the first set of financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are adopted by the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC), formerly the Accounting Standards Council,
from the pronouncements issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
PFRSs consist of:

a. Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) - corresponding to International
Financial Reporting Standards;

b. Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs) - corresponding to International Accounting
Standards; and

c. Interpretations to existing standards - representing interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFzuC),
formerly the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), of the IASB which are adopted

by the FRSC.

Basis of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
revaluation of ceftain financial assets. The measurement bases are more fully described in
the accounting policies tliat follow.

Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting Standard
(PAS l), Presentation of Financial Statements.The Company presents all items of income
and expenses in a single statement of comprehensive income.

Tlie Company presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively,
or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on
the inforrnation in the staternent of financial position at the beginning of the preceding
period. Tlre related notes to the third statements of financial position are not required to be
d isclosed.

3.2 Functionol Currency and Foreign Currency Transactions

These financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the Company's functional
currency, and all values represent absolute arnounts except when otherwise indicated.

Functional and Presentation Currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured usingthe currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (thi ',functional
currency"). The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the
Company' s functional currency.
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Transactions and Balance
The accounting records of the Company are maintained in Philippine Peso. Foreign
currency transactions during the period are translated into the functional currency at
exchange rates, which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

3.3 Adoption of l,{ew Interpretation, Revisions and Amendments to PFRS

. PFR,S 9, Financial Instrumenrs - This standard replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. It provides requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities, impairment, hedge accounting, recognition,
and derecognition.

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income (OCD,
depending on their classification by reference to the business model within which these are

held and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair
value option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated
as at FVPL that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in
OCI (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial
statements to better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging
financial and nonfinancial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39.

The Company assessed that the adoption of PFRS 9, specifically on determining impairment
loss using simplified approach (or general approach, as applicable), has no significant
impact on the carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets.

'PFRS 15, Revenuefrom Contract with Customers - The new standard replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, and related interpretations. It establishes a single
cotnprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle (based on a five-step model to be
applied to all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved
guidance (e.g., the point at which revenLre is recognized, accounting for viriable
considerations, costs of fulfilling and obtaining a contract, etc.). Further, the standard was
subsequently amended to provide clarifications on the following topics:
(a) identifying performance obligations; (b) principal versus agent considerations;
and (c) licensing. The amendments also provide sorne transition relief for rnodified
contracts and completed contracts.

Based on the Company's assessment, the adoption of PFRS 15 has no significant impact in
the timing of the Company's revenue recognition.
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. Amendments to PFR.S 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to
PFRS 15 - The amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: (a) identi$,ing
performance obligations; (b) principal versus agent considerations; and (c) licensing.
The amendments also provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed
contracts.

. PAS 28 (Amendments), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Measuring an

associate or joint venture at fair value (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle). Clarifies that a qualifuing entity is able to choose between applying the equity
method or measuring an investment in an associate or joint venture at fair value through
profit or loss, separately for each associate or joint venture at initial recognition of the

associate or joint venture. Similar clarifications have been made for a reporting entity that is

not an investment entity and that has an associate or a joint venture that is an investment
entity. PAS 28 permits such a reporting entity the choice to retain the fair value

measurements used by that investment entity associate or joint venture when applying the

equity method. The amendments clarif, that this choice is also made separately for each

investment in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, at the later of the
date on which: (a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized;
(b) the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity
associate orjoint venture first becomes a parent.

The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier application permitted.

. PAS 40 (Amendments), Investment Property - Transfers of Investment Property.
The amendments state that an entity shall transfer a properfy to, or from,
investment properly when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use.

A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property. A change in management's intentions for the use of a properfy by itself does not
constitute evidence of a chauge in use. Exarnples of eviderrce of a change in use:
(a) commencement of owner-occupation, or of development with a view to
owner-occupation, for a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied propefiy;
(b) commencement of development with a view to sale, for a transfer from investment
properry to inventories; (c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied
property to investment property; or and(d) commencement inception of an operating lease
to anotl-rer party, for a transfer from inventories to investment property.

The amendments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporling period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Retrospective application is only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

'PFR^S I (Amendments), First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard
- Deletion of short-tertn exentptions for first-tinte adopters (Part of Annual Improvements to
PFRSs 2011- 2016 Cycle). The amendment is about the removal of short-term exemptions
dealing with PFRS 7 Financial Instruntents; Disclosures, PAS l9 Employee Benefits and
PFR.I l0 Consolidated Financial Statentenrs. The reliefs provided are no longer applicable
and had been available to entities for reporting periods that have now passed.
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. PFR,S 2 (Amendment), Share-based payment - Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions. The amendments provide requirements on the

accounting for: (a) the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of
cash-settled share-based payments; (b) share-based payment transactions with a net

settlement feature for withholding tax obligations; and (c) a modification to the terms and

conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification of the transaction from

cash-settled to equity-settled.

Companies are required to apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on or after

January 7,2019. Earlier application is permitted.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods,

but retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other

criteria are met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

. PFR,S 4 (Amendments), Insurance Contracts - Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

with PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. The amendments provide two options for entities that

issue insurance contracts within the scope of PFRS 4: (a) an option that permits entities to

reclassifr, from profit or loss to other comprehensive income, some of the income or

expenses arising from designated financial assets; this is the so-called overlay approach;

(b) an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 for entities whose predominant

activity is issuing contracts within the scope of PFRS 4; this is the so-called deferral

approach.

The application of both approaches is optional and an entity is permitted to stop applying

them before the new insurance contracts standard is applied.

The amendments are not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the

Cornpany have activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance

contracts.

Standards Issued but Not Yet Effective
Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial

statements are listed below. This listing is of standards and interpretations issued, which the

Company reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Company intends to

adopt these standards when they become effective. Except as otherwise indicated,

the Cornpany does not expect the adoption of these new and amended PAS,

PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant impact on the financial statements.

a) Effective in 2019 but relevant to the Company

(i) PAS 19 (Amendments), Employee Benefits - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement. The arnendments require an entity: (a) to use updated assumptions to

determile current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a

plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and to recognize in profit or loss as part

of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus,

even if that sLrrplus was llot previously recognized because of the impact of the asset

ceiling.
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(ii) PFRS 9 (Amendments), Financial Instruments - Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation. Amendments to the existing requirements in PFRS 9 regarding
termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortized cost (or, depending on

the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the

case of negative compensation payments. The sign of the prepayment amount is not
relevant, i. e. depending on the interest rate prevailing at the time of termination,
a payment may also be made in favor of the contracting party effecting the early

repayment. The calculation of this compensation payment must be the same for both

the case of an early repayment penalty and the case of an early repayment gain.

The amendment also include clarification regarding the accounting for a modification
or exchange of a financial liability measured at amortized cost that does not result in
the derecognition of the financial liability. An entity recognizes any adjustment to the

amortized cost of the financial liability arising from a modification or exchange in

profit or loss at the date of the modification or exchange. A retrospective change of
the accounting treatment may therefore become necessary if in the past the effective
interest rate was adjusted and not the amortized cost amount.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for fiscal years beginning on or

after January 1,2079, i. e. one year afterthe first application of PFRS 9 in its current

version. Early application is permitted so entities can apply the amendments together

with PFRS 9 if they wish so. Additional transitional requirements and corresponding

disclosure requirements must be observed when applying the amendments for the

first time.

(iii) PFRS 16, I,eases. On January 13,2016, the PASB issued its new standard, PFRS 16,

which replaces PAS 17, the current leases standard, and the related Interpretations.

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classifu their leases as either operating

or finance leases in accordance with PAS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the

single-asset rnodel. Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related

Iiabilities for most leases on their balance sheets, and subsequently,
rvill depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest on the lease liabilities in their
profit or loss. Leases,'vith a tenn of 12 months or less or for which the underlying
asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements. The accounting by

lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the principles

of lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose

more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to

residLral value. PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2019. Early application is permitted but only if PFRS 15 is applied at or

before the date of initial application of PFRS 16. The Company is currently assessing

the irrpact of PFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective
date once adopted locally.

(iv) Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (Amendments).

The pronouncement contains amendments to four International Financial Reporting

Standards (PFRSs) as result of the PASB's annual improvements project'
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Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2015-2011 Cycle makes amendments to

the following standards:

PFRS 3, Business Combination - The amendments clarifu that when an entity
obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously
held interests in that business.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangemenls - The amendments clariS, that when an entity
obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not

remeasure previously held interests in that business.

PAS 12, Income Taxes - The amendments clarifiz that all income tax
consequences of dividends (i.e. distribution of profits) should be recognized in
profit or loss, regardless ofhow the tax arises.

PAS 23, Borrowing Costs - The amendments clarifu that if any specific
borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use

or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows
generally when calculating the capitalization rate on general borrowings.

(v) Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes when

tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 and does not

apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of PAS 72, nor does it specifically include

requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax

treatments. The interpretation specifi cally addresses the following:

o Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
o The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by

taxation authorities
. How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,

unused tax credits and tax rates
o How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

b) Effective in 2019 but not relevant to the Company

(i) PAS 28 (Amendments),Investntent in Associates and Joint ventures
Long-tertn Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures. Amendments clarify that an

entity applies PFRS 9 including its impairment requirements, to long-term interests in

an associate or joint venture that fonn part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied. An entity shall apply

these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,2019.
Earlier application is perrnitted.

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts

the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed.

a

a

a

a
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Effective 2021

IFRS 17, lnsurance Contracts. Establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of Insurance contracts within the scope of the Standard.
The objective of IFRS i7 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that
faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial
statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. An entity shall apply IFRS 17 Insurance

Contracts to: a) lnsurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts, it issues;

b) reinsurance contracts it holds: c) and Investment contracts with discretionary
participation features it issues, provided the entity also issues insurance contracts.

Some contracts meet the definition of an insurance contract but have as their
primary purpose the provision of services for a fixed fee. Such issued contracts are in the

scope of the standard, unless an entity chooses to apply to them IFRS 15 Revenue

from Contracts with Customers and provided the following conditions are met:
(a) the entity does not reflect an assessment of the risk associated with an individual
customer in setting the price of the contract with that customer;
(b) the contract compensates the customer by providing a service, rather than by making
cash payments to the customer; and (c) the insurance risk transferred by the contract arises

primarily from the customer's use of services rather than from uncertainty over the cost of
those services.

Effective 2022

(i) PAS 16 (Amendments), Properfy, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended
Use. Amends the standard to prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from
selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

(t, PAS 37 (Amendments), Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
Onerous Contract - Cost of Fulfilling a Contracts. The changes specif, that the
'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs rhat relate directly to the contract'.
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labor, materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
contract).

(ii, PFRS I (Amendments), First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards, Subsidiary as a first-time adopter. The amendment permits a subsidiary that
applies paragraph Dl6(a) of PFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences
using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent's date of transition to
PFRSs.

(iv) PFRS 9 (Amendrnents), Financial Instruments, Fees in the'10 percent'test for
derecognition of financial liabilities. The amendment clarifies which fees an entity
includes when it applies the '10 percent'test in paragraph 83.3.6 of PFRS 9 in
assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An entity includes only fees

paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.
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Effictive 2023

(, PAS 1 (Amendments), Presentation of Financial Statements, Classification of
Liabilities as Curent or Non-current. The amendments affect only the presentation of
liabilities in the statement of financial position not the amount or timing of recognition
of any asset, liability, income of expenses, or the information that entities disclose
about those items. Clarif,i that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current
(a) should be based on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period
and align the wording in all affected paragraphs to refer to the "right" to defer
settlement by at least twelve (12) months and make explicit that only rights in place
"at the end of the reporting period" should affect the classification of liability, (b) is

unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability, and (c) seftlement refers to the transfer to the counteryarfy of
cash, equity instruments and other assets or services.

(ii) PFRS 17 (Amendments), Insurance Contracts. The main changes resulting from
Amendments to PFRS 77 are:

Deferral of the date of initial application of PFRS 17 by two years to annual
periods beginning on or after January 1,2023 and change the fixed expiry date for
the temporary exemption in PFRS 4Insurance Contracts from applying PFRS

9 Financial Instruments, so that entities would be required to apply PFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2023.

a

a

a

a

a

G

o

a

o

Additional scope exclusion for credit card contracts and similar contracts that
provide insurance coverage as well as optional scope exclusion for loan contracts
that transfer significant insurance risk.

Recognition of insurance acquisition cash flows relating to expected contract
renewals, including transition provisions and guidance for insurance acquisition
cash flows recognized in a business acquired in a business combination.

Clarification of the application of PFRS 17 in interim financial statements
allowing an accounting policy choice at a reporting entity level.

Clarification of the application of contractual service margin (CSM) attributable to
investment-return service and investment-related service and changes to the
correspoud ing disclosure requ irements.

Extension of the risk mitigation option to include reinsurance contracts held and
non-financial derivatives.

Amendments to require an entity that at initial recognition recognizes losses on
onerous insurance contracts issued to also recognize a gain on reinsurance
contracts held.

Simplified presentation of insurance contracts in the statement of financial
position so that entities would present insurance contract assets and liabilities in
the statement of financial position determined using portfolios of insurance
contracts rather than groups of insurance contracts.

Additional transition relief for business combinations and additional transition
relief for the date of application of the risk mitigation option and the use of the fair
value transition approach.

Several small amendments regarding minor application issuesa

Page 9 of 59



Mandatory Date Yet to be Determined

(i) Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 75, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate.

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities
that undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors.
The interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized
only upon completion, except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to

be accounted for under PAS 17, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of
services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of completion.

Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and where

the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis

will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of this
interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of the

final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is

completed.

Adoption of the interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the

financial statements of the Company.

3.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent is initially and subsequently measured at face value which is
usually its fair value. Cash includes cash on hand and in bank. Cash in bank in current
account earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates and this is held at call with bank.

Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months or less

from the date of placement and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.5 Short Term Investment

The account includes investments in time deposit, money market instruments or treasury
bills which have a maturity of more than three (3) months but not more than one (1) year
after acquisition date. These are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Short-term investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Any change in their value
is recognized in profit or loss.

3.6 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity or a

financial liability or equiqv instrument of another entity.

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liabiliry in
the statements of financial position when it becornes a party to the contractual provisions of
a financial instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets,

recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.
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"Day I " Dffirence. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair
value of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market,
the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value
(a "Day 1" difference) in profit or loss. In cases where there is no observable data on
inception, the Company deems the transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and

recognizes "Day l" difference in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when
the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the "Day 1" difference.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets, are recognized initially at fair
value, which is the fair value of the consideration given. The initial measurement of
financial assets, except for those designated at FVPL, includes transaction cost.

Classification. The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the

following categories: (a) financial assets at amortized cost, (b) financial assets at FVOCI,
and (c) financial assets at FVPL. The classification of a financial asset at initial recognition
largely depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and its

contractual cash fl ow characteristics.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment.
Alnortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees that are an integral parl of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognized and through
amortizatiotl process. Financial assets at amortized cost are included under current assets if
realizability or collectability is within 12 rnonths after the reporting period. Otherwise,
these are classified as noncurrent assets.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company's insurance balance receivables,
accounts and other receivables and held+o-maturity financial assets are classified under this
category.

Debt Instruments at FVOCI. For debt instruments that are not designated at FVpL under
the fair value option, the financial assets are measured at FVOCI if both of the following
conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

a

a

o

a The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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After initial recognition, interest income (calculated using the effective interest rate
method), foreign curency gains or losses and impairment gains or losses of debt
instruments measured at FVOCI are recognized directly in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI
are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

As of December 31,2021 and 2020, the Company does not have debt instruments at
FVOCI.

Equity Instruments at FVOCI. For equity instruments that are not held for trading,
the Company may irrevocably designate, at initial recognition, a financial asset to be

measured at FVOCI when it meets the definition of equity instrument under PAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation. This option is available and made on an instrument by
instrument basis.

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the

right to receive payment is established, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. All other gains or losses from equity instruments are

recognized in OCI and presented in the equity section of the consolidated statements of
financial position. These fair value changes are recognized in equity and are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods, instead, these are transferred directly to retained

earnings.

As of December 31, 202I and 2020, the Company available for-sale-financial assets are

classified under this category.

Financial Assets at FVPL. Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortized cost or FVOCI are classified under this category. Specifically,
financial assets at FVPL include financial assets that are (a) held for trading,
(b) designated upon initial recognition at FVPL, or (c) mandatorily required to be measured
at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as

effective hedging instruments.

This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows, based on the assessment
at initial recognition of the assets, are not "solely for payment of principal and interest",
and which are not held within a business model whose objective is either to
collect contractual cash flows or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell.
The Cornpany may, at initial recognition, designate a debt instrument rneeting the criteria
to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as a financial asset at FVPL, if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would arise from measuring
these assets.

After initial recognition, financial assets at FVPL are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or Iosses arising from the fair valuation of financial assets at FVPL are recognized in
profit or loss.

As of December 31 ,2021 and2020, tlie company has no financial assets at FVPL.

Reclassification. The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when,
it changes its business model for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is
applied prospectively from the first day of the first repofting period following the change in
the business model (reclassification date).
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For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to
financial assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous
amortized cost of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to
financial assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous
amortized cost of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCI.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial
assets at amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross

carrying amount.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial
assets at amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI, and any difference

between the new amortized cost and maturity amount, are amoftized to profit or loss over

the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest method. If the financial
asset is subsequently impaired, any gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be

recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial
asset is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial
assets at FVOCI, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying
amount. Meanwhile, for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI
category to financial assets at FVPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified from equiry to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the

reclassification date.

Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost and FVOCI. The Company recognlzes
an allowance for ECL for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECL is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
tlie cash flows that the Cornpany expects to receive, discounted at an approximation to the
asset's original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the sirnplified approach and has calculated
ECL based on the lifetime ECL. The Company has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to its custorners and the economic environment.

For other debt instruments measured at amortized cost and FVOCI, the ECL is based on the
l2-months ECL, which pertains to the poftion of Iifetirne ECLs that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months afterthe reporling date.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the allowance rvill be based on the lifetime ECL. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporling date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. The Company also considers reasonable and supportable information,
that is available without undue cost or effort that is indicative of significant increases in
credit risk since initial recosnition.
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a

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractualpayments are 30 days
past due unless it is demonstrated that the non-payment was an administrative oversight
rather than resulting from financial diffrculty of the borrower. However, in certain cases,

the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the

contractual cash flows.

Derecognition. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has

assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third parly under
a "pass-through" arrangement; or

The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset

and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control ofthe asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred
control of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the

Company's continuing involvement in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

Inilial Recognition and Measurenxent. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value, which is the fair value of the consideration received. In case of financial liabilities at

amortized costs, the initial measurement is net of any directly attributable transaction costs.

Classi,ficotion. The Company classifies its financial liabilities at initialrecognition as either
financial liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities at amoftized cost.

As of December 3 1 ,2021 and 2020, the Company does not have liabilities at FVPL.

Financtal Liabilities at Antortized Cost. Financial liabilities are categorized as financial
liabilities at amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arangement results in the
Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder,
or to settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognized or impaired or through the amortization piocess.

a
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As of December 31,2021 and 2020, the Company's policy and contract liabilities,
and other current liabilities (except statutory payables) are classified under this category.

Derecognition. A ftnancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged, cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity. A financial
instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entiry under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

Satisfo the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another
financial asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a

financial liability.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statements of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generaliy the case with master netting agreements,
and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

3.7 Policy and Automatic Premiunr Loans

Automatic premium loans arise after three (3) or more full years that premiums have been
paid on the policy and while it is in force, and if any premium thereon or renewal loan
interest becomes due and is not paid within the grace period, provided the policy has a net
cash value, the Company shall advance as a loan, a sum sufficient to cover the said
premium or renewal loan interest. Such process continues as stated until the net cash value
is exhausted.

3. 8 Investment Property

Initially, investment property is measured at cost including transaction costs. The cost of a
purchased investment properry comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
expenditure such as professional fees services, property transfer taxes and other transaction
costs. Subsequent expenditure is recognized only as an asset when the expenditure improves
the condition of the asset beyond its originally assessed standard of performance.
All other subsequent expenditures are recoguized as an expense when incurred.

Subsequently, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market
conditions at the financial reporting date. Any gain or loss resulting from either change in
the fair value is immediately recognized in the itatements of .o*pr.h.nrive income in the
year in which they arise
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Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed or when the

investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected

from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment properly is
recognized in the statements of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or disposal.

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations,

such as repairs and maintenance costs, are operations in the year in which the costs are

incurred.

3.9 Property and Equipment

An item of property and equipment shall be qualified for recognition as an asset if and only
if, (1) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

entity; and (2) the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Initially it is measured at its

cost. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Property and equipment, except building, are subsequently measured at cost less

accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss. Buildings are subsequently measured at

revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditures incurred after the assets have been put into operation are

capitalized as additional cost of the assets when the resulting future economic benefit

exceeds the originally assessed standard of performance of the asset. All other subsequent

expenditures incurred such as repairs and maintenance are recognized in the statements of
comprehensive income in the period the costs are incurred. When assets are sold or retired,

their cost, accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated impairment losses

are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the statements

of comprehensive income of such period.

Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the

estimated useful lives of the following assets:

Estimated useful lives

Building and building improvements

EDP machines

Furniture and fixtures

Motor car

Office equipment

Computer software

40 years

5 years

5 years

5 years

5 years

5 years

The residual values, depreciation and amortization method and useful life are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the residual value, method and period of depreciation and
amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property and equipment.

The carrying values of the property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income
(r.Note 3.8).
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3.10 Impairment of Non-financial Asset

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets such as property and
equipment are reviewed at each financial reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment or an impairment loss previously recognized no longer exists or
may have decreased. If any such indications exist, the Company makes a formal estimate of
the asset's recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher between an asset's or its cash generating unit's fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm's length transaction. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash flows independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and

an impairment loss is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reverse if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's

carrying amount does not exceed the carr,ving amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
Reversals of impairment are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

3.11 Liability for Incurred Policy BeneJit

A liability for incurred policy benefits relating to life insurance contracts in force is accrued
when premium revenue is recognized.

The Cornpany's legal policy reserve, policy claims payable, unclaimed maturity benefits
and unclaimed anticipated endowments are computed annually based on the approved
valuation rnethod by the Insurance Commission (lC) being certified by an independent
actuary.

The Cornpany assesses at each repofting date whether it recognized insurance liabilities are
adequate, using the current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts.
If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in
the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency shall be recognized in
profit or loss.

The liability is derecognized, discharged or cancelled, when the contracts expire.

3.12 Reinsuronce

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers that relate to paid claims and claim adjustment
expenses are classified as assets and the related liabilities are presented separately.
Amounts paid to the reinsurer relating to the unexpired portion of reinsured contract are also
presented as assets.
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3.13 Equity

Capital Stock
Capital stock is recognized as issued when the stock is paid for or subscribed under a

binding subscription agreement and is measured at par value.

Contributed Surplus
Contributed surplus represents the original contribution of the stockholders of the Company,
in addition to the paid-up capital stock, in order to comply with the pre-licensing
requirements as provided under the Insurance Code.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent accumulated net income of the Company less dividends
declared.

3. 1 4 Premium Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The additional specific
recognition criteria for each type of revenue are as follows:

Premium income
Premium is recognized as revenue when due and billed to policyholders.

Interest and Investment Income
Interest income is recognized as interest accrues based on the effective-interest method
(taking into account the effective yield on the asset).

3. 1 5 Product ClassiJication

Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk at the
inception of the contract, or those where at the inception of the contract there is a scenario
with commercial substance where the level of insurance risk may be significant. The
significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and
the magnitude of its potential effect.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance
contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly
during this period.

3.16 Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs such as commissions and other costs in connection with acquiring
new business are charged to current operations as incurred.

3.17 Claim Cost Recognition

Liability for unpaid claim cost relating to insurance contracts, including estimates of cost
relating to incurred but not reported claims are accrued when insured events occur.
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3,18 Retirement BeneJits Cost

The Company has a funded and non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan covering
all of its regular employees. Retirement benefit cost is determined using the projected unit
credit actuarial valuation method as determined by an independent actuary taking into
account the factors of investment, mortality, disability and salary projection rates on an

actuarial basis. Past service cost is recognized immediately as expense.

The Company recognizes a retirement benefit liability if the difference between the total of
the present value of the defined benefit obligation and any actuarial gains not recognized
and the total of the past service cost and actuarial losses not yet recognized and the fair
value of plan assets results to a positive. If such difference results to a negative,
the Cornpany recognizes a plan asset which is measured at the lower of such difference or
the total of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the value
of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the
future contributions to the plan.

3.19 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but they are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed in the notes to
financialstatements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.20 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating lease.

Company as Lessee
Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the
fair value of the leased propefty or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apporlioned between the finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income.

Capitalization leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term. Operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense in the general and administrative expenses in the itatements of cJmprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Companlz as Lessor
Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating lease. Rental income from operating leases is
recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also
spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.21 Income Tax

Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are substantively enacted at the financial
reporting date.

Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary
differences at the financial reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carry forward of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and
net operating loss carry over (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of
unused tax credits and NOLCO can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each financial reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Defered income tax liabilities are recognized for alltaxable temporary differences

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse.

3.22 Earnings and Book Value per Share

Earnings per share is computed by dividing net income attributable to common stockholders
for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year
after giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared and stock rights exercised during
the year, if any. The companv does not have dilutive potentialcommon shares.

Book value per share is the amount that would be paid on each share assuming the
Company is liquidated and the amount available to shareholders is exactly the amount
reported as stockholders' equify. It is computed by simply dividing the total stockholders,
equity to number of shares outstanding during the year since the Company has only one
class of shares ofstock.

3.23 Reloted Parties

Related parry transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
company and their related parties, regardless whether a price is chargedl
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Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period:
(a) one parly has direct or indirect control ofthe other party; or (b) the pafties are subject to
common control from the same source; or (c) one party has influence over the financial and
operating policies of the other party to an extent that the other parly might be inhibited from
pursuing at all times its own separate interests; or the parties, in entering a transaction,
are subject to influence from the same sources to such an extent that one ofthe parties to the

transaction has subordinated its own separate interests.

As this fype of transactions cannot be avoided and are not deemed unlawful,
transactions involving such shall require disclosure as provided in the PAS 24 Related Parly
Transactions.

Individuals, associates or companies that directly or indirectly control or are controlled by
or under common control and individuals owning directly or indirectly an interest in the

voting power of the reporting entity that gives them significant influence over the entity,
and close family members of such individuals are considered related parfy.

Key management personnel are those persons having authorify and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director of that entity.

3,24 Events after tlte End of the Reporting Period

Events after the end of the reporting period are those cvents, favorable and unfavorable,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial
statements are authorized for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

(a) Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
(adjusting events after the reporting period); and

(b) Those indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events
after the reporting period).

Post year-end events up to the date of the auditors' repofi that provide additional
information about the Company's position at the financial reporting date (adjusting events)
are reflected in the statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to financial statements when materral.

3.25 Prior Period Adjustments

Prior period adjustrnents are omissions from, and misstatements in, the Company's financial
statements for one or more periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of,
reliable information.

A prior period error shall be corrected by retrospective restatement except to the extent that
it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of
the error.

3.26 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either: In the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or h;bility.
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NOTE 4

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant

observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

PFRS 13 requires that financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets which are

measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis and those assets and liabilities
not measured at fair value, but for which fair value is required to be disclosed in accordance

with other relevant PFRS to be categorized into three levels based on the significance of
inputs used to measure the fair value.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels

(a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that an entity can access at the measurement date;

(b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted pries included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset (i.e., derived from price); and,

(c) Level3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable marked data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within wliich the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest
level significant input to the fair value measurement.

ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the
Company's management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and other
various factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances including
expectations of related future events, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed and evaluated on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which thelstiirate is
revised if the revisions affect only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods ifthe revision affects both current periods.
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4.1 ludgments

Classification of Financial Instruments
The Company classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition
as financial asset, financial liability or equity instrument in accordance with the substance of
the contractual agreement and the definitions of financial asset, financial liability or equity
instrument. In addition, the Company also determines and evaluates its intention and ability
to keep the investments until its maturity date.

The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, and the management

intention and ability to hold the financial instrument to maturity generally governs its

classification irr the statements of financial position,

Detennination of Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company carriers certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires

extensive use of accounting estimates and judgment. While significant components of fair
value measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Company utilized different valuation
methodologies and assumptions. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and

liabilities would affect profit and loss and equity.

Distinction between Investment Properties and Owner-Managed Properties
The Company determines whether a property qualifies as investment properly. In making its
judgment, the Company considers whether the property generated cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate

cash flows that are attributable not only to other assets used in the production or supply
process.

Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a

property does not quali$, as investment properfy. The Company considers each properfy
separately in making its judgment.

Operating Lease Treatment

The Comparry has entered into lease agreements. Critical judgment was exercised by
management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating or finance lease by
looking at tl,e transfer or retention of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the
properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will result in
either overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.

4.2 Estimates and Assumptions

Measurement of Financial Assets
The Cornpany carries certain financial assets at fair value, which requires extensive use of
accoutlting estimates and judgment. While significant components of fair value
lneasurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange
rates, interest rates, volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value woulddiffer if the
Company utilized a different vah.ration methodology. Any changes in fair value these
financial assets would affect profit and loss and equity.
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Valuation of Insurance Contract Liabilities
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether its recognized insurance liabilities are

adequate, using the current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts, if
that assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities (less related
intangible assets) is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Estimation of Impairment Losses
Recoverability of specific receivables is evaluated based on the best available facts and
circumstances, the length of the Company's relationship with its debtors, the debtors'
payment behavior and known market factors. These specific reserves are reevaluated and
adjusted as additional information received affects the amount estimated to be uncollectible.
No allowance was set up for the years ended December 31,2021 and2020.

Estimation of Useful Lives and &qu ual Value of Propertv and Equipment
The Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the period over
which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of properly

the equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and

legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, estimation of the useful lives of
properfy and equipment is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal

technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future

results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by

changes in factors mentioned above. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any

period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the

Lstimated useful lives of properry and equipment would increase recorded operating

expenses and decrease non-current assets.

The carryipg value of propeqv and equipment net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization amounting to P8l ,498,504.64 and P77,028,469.04 as of December 31,2021

and2020, respectivelY (Note 1+)'

E N
The Cornpany assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is an indication that

the carrying amount of all non-financial assets may be impaired or that PreviouslY

recognized impairment losses may no longer exist

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing

makes an estirnate of the asset's recoverable amount'

No impairment losses were recognized on property and equipment and investment

properties during the Year'

f

or may lrave decreases. If anY such

for an asset is required, the Company
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Contingencies
The estimate of the probable cost fort the resolution of possible claims has been developed

in consultation with outside counsel handling the Company's defense in these matters and is

based upon an analysis of potential results. The Company is a party to ceftain lawsuits or

claims arising from the ordinary course of business. However, the Company's management

and legal counsel believe that the eventual liabilities under these lawsuits or claims, if any,

will not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. Accordingly,
no provision for probable losses arising from contingencies was recognized in the

Company' s financial statements as of December 3 1 , 2021 and 2020 .

Valuation of Post-employment Defined Bpne:EI
The determination of the Company's obligation and cost of post-employment defined

benefit is dependent on the selection of cerlain assumptions in calculating such amount.

Those assumptions include, among others, discount rate and salary rate increase.

In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated

and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the expense and the

carrying amount of post-employment obligation in such future periods.

The amount of post-employment benefit obligation and related expense are presented in

Note 18.

Revenue and Cost Recognition
tt. Crrpuny', ,.u.*. und cost recognition policies require the use of estimates and

assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of receivables and payables'

Differences between thl amounts initially recognized and actual settlements are taken up in

the accounts upol1 reconciliation. However, there is no assurance that such use of estimates

may not result to material adjustments in future periods'

o Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible tempo rary differences to the extent that

it is probable that taxable Profit will be available against which these can be utilized

Sign ifi cant management j udgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets

that can be recogn ized. These assets are Periodically reviewed for realization

Periodic reviews cover the nature and amount of defened income and exPense items,

expected timing when assets will be used or liabil ities will be required to be repofted,

reliability of historical profitabilitv of businesses exPected to Prov ide future earnings and

tax planning strategies which can be utilized to increase the likelihood that tax assets will be

realized.
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NOTE 5 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

5.1 Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and the fair values by level of the fair
value hierarchy of the Company's financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is
disclosed as of December 31, 2021 and2020:

Fair Value Hierarchy
Note Carryrrg amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total2021

Assets wiil, recuring fair value
ntedsurement

Available-for-sale financral assets

Assets and liabilities forwhich
fair values are disclosed

Financial assets

Cash*
Loans and receivable

Insurance balance receivables

Accor.ults and other receivables

H e ld-to-maturity fmancial assets

Fiuancial liabilities

Other luranc ral liabilities

Due to reinsurer

FLurds held in trust

Accnred expense payable

2020

Assets with recurring fair value

nreflsureillent
Available-for-sale financial assets

Assets uttd liebilities for wltich

Joir values are disclosed

lrinancial assets

Cash*

Loans aud receivable

I r.rsuratrce balarrce receivables

Accorurts and other receivables

lleld-to-marurity financial assets

Long tenn investment

Finarrc ial liabilitres

C)ther linanciaI llabilities

Due to reinsrrer
Funds held nr trLEt

Accrued exPense PaYable

91,388,92s.76 49,330,390.76

180,16s,4s7.99 180.16s157.99

336,205,345.51

14,367,469.29

630,01 0,s02,6s 630.0 l 0,s02.65

121,910,166 78

312,712.57

399,022.74

11 42.058.535.00 91.388.92s.76

180, l 65,457.997

8

9

12

l7

336,20s,345.s1

14,367,469.29

12t,910,1 66.78

312,712.57

399,022.14

336,205,345.51

14,367,469.29

630,010,502.65

l2 t,9 l 0,166.78

3t2.712.57
399.022.74

Far Value Hierarchv

Note Carrying amount Level I Level2 3 Total

l1 79,447,158.36 25,715,581.04

244.922,986.48 244.922,986.48

53,731,577.32 79,447,1s8.36

244,922,986.48
7

8

9

t2
15

308,040,98I 51

14,674,798.63

635,686,740 58

2,000,000 00

85,40 1.865.8s

1,148,50 1.29

t,)ti ,353.72

635,686,740.58

2,000,000.00

308,040,981.s1

14,674,798.63

8s,401,865.8s

1,148,50 1.29

1 ,017 ,353.72

308,040,981.sI

14,674,798.63

63 5,686,740.5 8

2,000,000.00

8s,401,865,85

1,148,50I 29

|,01,7 ,353.'72

17

*Cash exclude cash on hand amounting to P378,190'70 and P373'868'70 as of the years

ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively'
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5.2 Fair Value Information

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of the
financial instruments are as follows:

Cash, short-term investments, loan and other receivables and other financial liabilities -
Carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair value of AFS financial assets that are actively traded in organized financial markets
is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices, at the close of business on the
reporting date, or the last trading day as applicable.

The description of the accounting policies for each category of financial instruments is

disclosed in Notes 3.6. A description of the Company's risk management objectives and
policies for financial instruments is provided in Note 6.

NOTE 6 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAG EMENT OB.TECTIVES AND
POLICIES

6.1 Insurance Risk

Insurance risks are the risk, other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of a
contract to the issuer.

The Cornpany is exposed to insurance risk through its contracts with its customers that

provide life and credit life coverage.

The Company has a policy on the selection and approval of risks to be insured, use of limits

and avoidance of undue concentrations of risks. As it insures only those qualified clients,

it assesses the insurability of potential policyholders together with their evaluation of the

acceptability of a future policyholder.

6.2 Finuncisl Risk

The Cornpany is exposed to a variety of financial risks arising from its financing,

operating aud investing activities. The Company's managemellt is responsible for the

Compan!,'s financial risk managernent which includes establishment of risk strategies and

policies and monitoring and eviluation of risk in line with the set policies and strategies.

The objective of financial risk management is to contain, where appropriate, expo,sures in

these financial risks to limit any negative impact on the Company's results and financial

position.

The Cornpany's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents,

short-term investments, insurance balance receivables, accounts and other receivables,

HTM investments, AFS financial assets, policy and contract liabilities and other liabilities'

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Company's

operations. Tlie Company actively measures, monitors and manages its financial risk

.*porr,r", by varioui iunctions pursuant to the segregation of duties principles'

Tlie main risks arising frorn the Company's financial instrument are summarized as follows:
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Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will defaults on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Company. Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of
financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown in the statements of
financial position (or in the detailed analysis provided in the notes to the financial
statements). Credit risk, therefore, is only disclosed in circumstances where the maximum
potential loss differs significantly from the financial asset's carrying amount.

The details of the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk are as follows:

Note

Gross Maximum Exposure

202t 2020

Cash*

Loans and receivable

Insurance balance receivables

Accounts and other receivables

Held-to-maturity

He ld-to-maturity investments

Long term investment

180,165,45'7.99 244,922,986.487

8

9

336,205,345.51

14,367,469.29

630,010,502.65

308,040,981.51

14,674,798.63

635,686,',7 40.58

2,000,000.00

t2
15

202r

Total I ,160,7 48,77 5 .44 1 ,205,325 ,507 .20

*Cash exclude cash on hand amounting to P378,190.70 and P373,868.70 as of the years
ended December 3I , 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Company's details of credit quality of financialassets are shown below:

Niether past due nor impaired Past due but not

impairedHigh grade Standard Grade lmpaired TotalNote

Cash+

Loans and receivable

lnsurance balance receivables

Accounts and other receivables

Available-for-sale frnanc ia I assets

Held-to-maturity t'inanc al assets

I'otal

2021)

Cash*

l-rrans and receivable

I nsurance balance receivables

Accounts and other receivables

Available-for-sale financial assets

lleld-to-matwiry fmanc nl assets

Long term investment

901,s64,886 40 350,572,8 14.80

Niether past due nor irnpaired

7

I
8

l1

t2

1 80, l 6sy's7.99

91,388,925'76

630,010,502.6s

336,205,345.5 1

14,36'7,469.29

l 80,r65y'57.99

Note High grade Standard Crade

Past due but not

impaired I mpa ired Total

7

8

8

ll
12

15

244,922,986 48

79,441,158 36

635,686,740.58

308,M0,98 r 51

14,674,'798.63

244,922,986 48

308,040,98 l.s I

14,6'74,798.63

79,447,158.36

635,686,740.58

322,'n5,780,14

*Cash exclude cash on hand amounting to P378,190.70 and P373,868.70 as of the

years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively'
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-_- 
---:- i22'nll!)20-

962,0s6,885.42 | 284,772,665.56



The description of the financial assets grading used by the Company is as follows:

High grade - These are deposits and receivables which have a high probability of collection.

The counterparty has the apparent ability to satisfiz its obligation and the securities on the

receivables are readily enforceable. These also include deposits with reputable institutions

from which the deposits may be withdrawn and recovered with certainty.

Standard grade - These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation

and the financial ability of the counterparty to pay but with experience of default.

The Company's management considers that all the above financial assets that are not

impaired or past due for each reporting date are of good credit quality.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or future cash flows arising from changes in

the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a

result of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other

market changes. The Company's market risk is manageable within conservative bounds.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020. the Company has not engaged in trading financial
instruments.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk to earnings or capital resulting from adverse movements in the

interest rates. The economic perspective of interest rate risk focuses on the value of bank in

the current interest rate environment and the sensitivity of that value to changes in interest

rates.

The Cornpany closely monitors the movements of interest rates in the market and reviews

its assets and liability structure to ensure that exposures to fluctuations in interest rates are

kept within acceptable limits.
202 1

l -2 years 2-3 years

More than

3 years Total

Cash n banks

I'leld-to maturity financial assets

'fotal

Cash in bank

Fleld-to maturiry financial assets

Long ternt ittvestment

180,1 65,457.99

319,929,7 64.71

500,095,222.70

7

t2 3 10,080,737 94

I80,165,457 99

630,0 1 0,502.65

- 3 10,080.737.94 810,1 7 5960.64

2020

Note Within I vear l -2 years 2-3 vears

More than

3 years Total

'7

12

l5

244922.986.48
635,686,740. s8

2,000,000.00

244922986.48

635,686,740 58

2,000,000.00

l-otal 744,922,986.48
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The summary of maturity profile of interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows

Interest rates of these financial instruments are shown below:

2021

Within I year I -2 vears 2-3 vears

More than

3 years

Cash in banks

Long term investments

Held-to maturity investments

Cash in banks

Long term investments

Held-to maturity investments

0.875o/o to 3.00%

7.00o/o

5.75o/o to 8.00o/o

2020

Within l year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than

3 years

0.875% to 3.00%

7.00%

5.75% to 8.00%

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign exchange risk arises because the Company enters into transactions and had
unsettled monetary liabilities in a currency, which is not the same as the Company's
functional currency (Philippine Peso). Such transactions and monetary liabilities are
exposed to foreign currency risk giving rise to gains or losses on translation into the
Philippine Peso. The risk specifically arose from cash and cash equivalents.

As of December 3 1, 2021, the Company has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk
as all transactions are denominated in Philippine Peso, its functional currency.

Liquiditv Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk from inability to meet obligations when they become due, because
of an inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding. The Company ensures that
sufficient liquid assets are available to meet short-term funding and regulatory
requirements.

The Company is mainly exposed to liquidity risk through its maturing liabilities,
The Company has a policy of regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure that maturing
liabilities will be adequately met.
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The details of the Company's maturity analysis are as follows:

Note
Due within I vear

2021 2020

r r 1,365,r87.79 r03,368,610.07Policy and contract liabilities

Aggregate reserve for life policies

and contracts

Other liabilities+

Total

NOTE 7

Cash in banks

Cash on hand

Due after 1 year

2021 2020

r6

278,690,976.00 299,167,364.20

122,621,902.09 87,56 7,720.86

233,987,089.88 190,936,330.93 278,690,976.00 299,167,364.20

*Excludes other payables which comprise of statutory obligations amounting to

P4,622,025.46 and P10,738,739.91 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The foregoing contractualmaturities reflect the gross cash flows at the end of the reporting
period.

CASH

The account consists of the following:

2021 2020

r9

17

1 80,165,457.99 244,922,986.48

3 73,868.70378 190.70

Total r R0 s4i 64R 6q 245,296,855.18

Cash in banks represent unrestricted deposits to various local banks that generally earn

interest at rates based on prevailing bank deposit rates. Total interest income from deposits
amounted to P1,465,905.88 and P747,178.59 for the years ended December 31,2021
and 2020, respectively Qllote 23).

Cash on hand includes peffy cash fund, production fuud, policy loan fund and building
maintenance fund which are used in the Company's daily operation.

None of the foregoing assets was restricted and used to secure any liabilities of the

Company.
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NOTE 8 INSURANCE BALANCE RECEIVABLES

The account consists of the following:

Net life insurance premiums due and uncollected

Due from reinsurer

Policy & automatic premium loans

Agents'account

Premium receivable

2021 2020

173 ,533 ,379 .l5
130,541,864.01

3 1,931,15 1.08

t12,'774.38

86,1 76.83

i 55,859,457.53

115,530,232.25

36,112,942.85

369,567.19

168,781 .69

Total 336,205,345.51 308, 040,981 .5 1

Net life insurance premium due and uncollected refers to premiums that are already due as

of cut-off date which was subsequently collected after the reporting period'

Due from reinsurer is a receivable of the Company from the reinsurer on claims already

paid and recoverable from the reinsurer'

Policy loans receivable are loans availed by the policyholders of standard policies with cash

surrender values. Policyholders are allowed to avail of these loans provided that the cash

surrender value is more than the loan outstanding balance, or else the policy is being lapsed.

Ap automatic premium loan does not involve cash out to policyholders. The loan shall be

taken out from the cash surrender value for the payment of premium arrears.

Agents' account refers to loans taken by the agents in support of their daily expenses.

Premium receivables pertain to the Company's share in the receivable of the pools frorn its

po I icyho lders/insured.

No allowance was set up and no impairment loss was recognized during the year'

None of the foregoing receivables were pledged/assigned to secure the Company's

liabilities. Furthermore, no impairment of receivables was recognized during the year.
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NOTE 9 ACCOUNTS AI{D OTHER RECEIVABLES

The account consists of the following:

Accounts receivable

Advances to employees

Accrued interest receivable

Supplies and stationeries

Creditable income tax (Note 25)

Total

3,184,319.17

489,354.79

,0 14.03 _),67:,67]2!_

202t 2020

1,554,559.12

8,044,601.69

1,5 5 5,506.80

8,751,840.74

4, 768,308.48 4,367 ,451.09

Total 14,367,469.29 14,614,798.63

Accounts receivable includes receivable from related parties such as Country Bankers
Insurance Corporation (CBIC) and La Fuerza Lending Corporation Q.Jote 27).

Advances to employees include: (a) premiums on individual personal policies of an
employee, (b) advances subject to liquidation of those employees who usually travel,
and (c) interest bearing emergency loans of employees. However, granting of such loan was
stopped during the year.

Accrued interest receivable includes interest on long-term investment and investment in
bonds.

No allowance was set up and no impairment loss was recognized during the year

None of the foregoing receivables were pledged/assigned to secure the Company's
liabilities. Furthermore, no impairment of receivables was recognized during the year.

NOTE IO OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of the following:

2021 2020

2,583,962.63

945,051.40

3,529
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NOTE 11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (AFS) FINANCIAL ASSETS

The account consists of equity securities broken down as follows:

2021 2020

42,05 8,535.00 53,731,577.32

6t 100.00 61 100.00

Unquoted securities

Quoted securities

Total

Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets

Less: Allowance for impairment loss

Carrying value

Cost:

At January 1

Written-off/Disposal

At December 31

Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets

Less: Allowance for impairment loss

At January 1

Fair value adjustrnent

91,388,925.76 19,44 7,t58.36

2021 2020

53,792,677 .32

11,673,042.32

53,792,67'7.32

42,119,635.00

49,269,290.76

53,792,677.32

25,654,481.04

42,119,635.00

49,269,290.76

53,792,677 .32

25,654,481.04

Carrying value 91,388,925.16 _1e447 Js8s6_

Movements in the account of unrealized gain of available-for-sale financial assets are as

follows:

2A? | 2020

25,654,481.04

23 614 809.12

23,124,801.04

1,929,680.00

At Decernber 3 i 49.269,290.7 6 25,654,481 .04

The fair values of AFS financial assets have been determined by reference to Circular
Letters issued by Insurance Commission and published prices in active market.

During the year 202l,the Company sold various AFS financial assets with total loss from
sale amounting to P836,874.31(Note 23).

The percentage of ownership to these investment are less than twenty percent (20%)

Total dividend income eamed amounted to Pl,529,928.76 and P40,764.54 for the years
ended December 31,2021 and 2020, respectively, which was included in Other income,
net presented in the Statements of Comprehensive Income (Note 23).
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NOTE 12 HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

The account consists of the following:

Current

Government:

Fixed rate treasury notes

Treasury bonds

Commercial:

Ayala Land bonds

Petron Corporation bonds

San Miguel Brewery fixed rate bonds

Sub-total

Non-current

Government:

Fixed rate treasury notes

Treasury bonds

Commercial:

SMC Global Power Holdings bonds

Ayala Corporate bonds

SM Prime bonds

Ayala Land bonds

Beginnirrg balance

Additions
Retirements

Ending balance

9,500,000.00

5 000 000.00

7 64.71 .)/ 045 191 .81

2021 2020

4,528,036.71

303,407,728.00

12,000,000.00

2,999,710.76

19,545,481.04

319 929

150,97 5,019.49

79,205,718.45

45,000,000.00

3 1,900,000.00

3,000,000.00

447,981,365.15

58,7 54,183.52

45,000,000.00

3 1,900,000.00

3,000,000.00

000 000.001

Sub-total 310 080 737.94 598,641,548.71

Total Carrying value ___ql9p_L!t!4t_ 635,6 86,740.58

The movements of the account during the year are presented as follows:

2021 2020

63 5,686,740.58

331,734,285.44

(337 ,4t0,523.37)

539,7 68,1ss .3'7

309,000,53 1.36

(213,081,946. 15)

630,01 0,502.65 ___q{!!J1!l!_
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'l'he related premiurn and discounts and more details of the account are shown below:

2021

Type

lnterest/

Coupon Rate 'femr Face value

Premium

(Discount), net Oarrying valuc Market value

Current

Governmenl:

Fixed rate treasury notes

Treasury bonds

Contmercial:

Ayala Land bonds

Sub-total

Non-current

Gove rnment:

Fixed rate treasury notes

1-reasury bonds

Commercial:

SMC Clobal Power Holdings Bonds

Ayala Corporate bonds

Ayala Land bonds

SM Prime Bonds

Sub-total

T'otal

4.6250/, to 4.7500/o

4.62s%

6.00%

3.500/" to (t.250o/o

2.625'Yo to 4.625Yo

5.17f/o to 6.250Yo

3.9200 to 6.8150h

6.000Yo

5.6630/0

5 to 7 years

7 years

5 to l0 years

5 to 9 years

10 years

5 years

t48,647,878.00

79,5 10,000.00

4s,000,000.00

3 r,900,000.00

2,327,141.49

(304,28 l .55)

t50,915,019.49

79,205,718.45

45,000,000.00

3 r,900,000.00

150,97s,019.49

7920s,718.4s

45,000,000.00

3 r,900,000.00

4,500,000.00

297,140,000.00

28,036.71

6,261,728.00

4,s28,036.71

303,401,728.00

4,528,036.71

303,401,728.00

r2,000,000.00 12,000,000.00

313 6,289,764.71 319,929,764.71 319,929,764.71

3,000,000.00 00

308,0s7,878.00 2,022,859.94 3 r 0,080,737.94 310,080,737 .94

621,697,878.00 _______glp,6u$_ 630,010,502.65 630,010,502.65

I']age 36 of 59

12,000,000.00

3,000,000.00



2020

Tvpe

Interest/

Coupon Rate Ternr Face value

Premium

(Discount), net Carryine valuc Market value

Current

Govemment:

Fixed rate treasury notes

Treasury bonds

Commercial:

Petron Corporation Bonds

San MiguelBrewery lxed rate bonds

Sub-total

Non-current

Government:

Fixed rate treasury notes

Treasury bonds

Commercial:

SMC Global Power Holdings Bonds

Ayala Corporate bonds

Ayala Land bonds

SM Prime Bonds

Sub-total

'lotal

3.500Yo

4.875o/o to 7.735%o

4.0030

5.500Yo

2.375%0 to 8.000%

2.6250 to 4.6250/o

5.179/o to 6.250Yo

3.920o/o to 6.875Yo

6.000o/o

5.6630/o

3,010,000.00

19,500,000.00

9,500,000.00

5,000,000.00

(10,289.24)

( r9,500,000.00)

2,999,710.76

9,500,000.00

2,999,710.76

9,500,000.00

5.000,000.00

37,01 0,000.00 (19,510,289.24) t7 .499,710.76 t7 10.76

5 to 7 years

7 years

5 to 10 years

5 to 9 years

10 years

5 years

444,347,878.00

s9,000,000.00

(296,770,186.45)

(201,474.34)

147,577,69t.ss

58,798,525.66

147 ,577 .69t.ss
58,798,s25.66

45,000,000.00

31,900p00.00

12,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

45,000,000.00

31,900,000.00

12,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

45,000,000.00

3 l,900,000.00

12,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

595,247,818.00 (296,971 79) 298,276,217.21 298276,217.21

632,257,878.00 (316,481,9s0.03) 3ts,775,927.97 315,775,927.97
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Bonds classified under current asset will mature within one (1) year from the reporting
period. Non-current investments will mature within March 2023 to September 2040.

Government bonds and treasury notes were deposited with the Insurance Commission in

accordance with the provisions of Section 217 of the Insurance Code for the security and

benefit of policyholders and creditors of the Company.

Interest income earned for the years ended December 31,2021 and 2020 amounted to
P22,9 7 8,60 1. 9 0 and P22,29 8,60 6. 6 1, respectively (l{ote 2 3 ).

No impairment loss was recognized during the year. Also, these investments were not used

as collateral to secure any obligation of the Company.

NOTE 13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The account consists of various parcels of land situated in different geographical location for
purposes of capital appreciation. Generally, these properties are revalued by an independent
appraiser in which the fair value was determined on the basis of recent sales of similar
property in the same area and taking into account the economic conditions prevailing at the

time the valuations were made. During 2021, the property was revalued based on the

appraisal reports prepared by the Lineage Valuation and AIlied Services Corporation which
resulted to an increase in fair value of P13,618,760.00.

The details of the account were shown below:

2021 2020

Balance, January 1

Disposals

122,940,800.00 122,940,800.00

Balance, December 31

Increase in fair value

122,940,800.00

Fair value, December 31 136,559 ,560.00 ____t2419!99!r

As of the reporting period, these properties were not used as collateral to secure any
obligation of tlie Company.

Moreover, there was no objective evidence which warrants the impairment of the
aforementioned properties. Hence, no impairment loss was recognized during the year.

122,940,800.00

13.618,760.00
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NOI'E 14 I'ROI'ERTY AND EOUTPMENT. NET

A reconciliation of carrying amount of property and equipment at the beginning and end of 2020 and202l are shown below:

Cost 2019
Disposal/

Additions Revaluation Adjustment 2020 Additions Revaluation

Disposal/

Adjustnent 202t

Building

Building intprovcnrent

E D P rnachines

Fumiture and fi{ures

Motor car

OITice equipment

Total

68,803, I 64.32

21,340,159.53

l,1,424,843.26

6,650,396.16

r 3.738.965.00

3,139,562.91

5,177,605.17 75,232,605.18

21,122,485.24

17,503,561.09

6,130,398.54

I 1,293,800.00

4,136,355.29

136,790.00

1,991,393.14

24,000.00

272,689.29

1,3u ,334.06 (65,498.36)

(2,445, I 65.00)

70,055,000.01

27,476,949.53

13,422,236.40

6,674,396.76

I 1,293,800.00

4,012,252.26

245,535.71

4,081,324.69

56,001.78

I 24, I 03.03

l31,697,091.84 2,430,872.43 1,311,334.06 (2,510,663.36) t32,934,634.91 4,506,965.2t 5,177,605.t7 142,619,205.34

Accumu lated Depreciation 2019 Depreciation Revaluation

Disposal /

Adjustnrent 2020
Disposal /

Adjustnrent 2021Depreciation Revaluation

Building

Building improvenrent

E D P machines

Fumiture and fixures

Motor car

Oflice equipment

Total

r 9.055. r 83.04

I,646,140.8t

8,668,0s0. r r

s,046,0s7.70

I 0,589,823.35

2,633,572.69

161,200.21

686,923.19

t,00'1,8t6.26

633,711.16

I ,230,440.01

451,9t0.12

(65,498.36)

(2,445,t65.02)

I 9,822,383.3 I

8,267,566.24

9,675,866.37

5,679,768.86

9,315,098.34

3,085,482.81

161,200.21

688,01 6.60

1,768,475.65

s47,167.28

t,071,366.67

366,308.30

20,589,583.58

8,955,582.84

11,M,342.02

6,226,936.14

10,452,465.01

3,451,791.11

53,638,827.10 4,778,001.61 (2,510,663.38) 55,906,165.93 5,214,534.77 6 l, I 20,700.70

Carrying value 18,058,264.14

Page 39 of 59

77,028,469.M 81,498,5M.64



During the year, the Company purchased printers, photocopy machines, laptops for officers,
access switch, transceiver and office equipment used in the normal operation of the

Company.

During the year 2020, the Company purchased printer, photocopy machines, laptops for
officers, desktop for employees, office chairs and office equipment used in the normal

operation of the Company.

Adjustment in buildings pertains to adjustment in revaluation of properties.

Disposal in 2020 pertains to sale of motor car. Gain on sale from of motor car amounting to
P3 50,000.00.

The building was revalued by an independent appraiser, which was duly approved by the

Insurance Commission on August 25,2016, in which the fair value was determined on the

basis of recent sales of similar property in the same area and taking into account the

economic conditions prevailing at the time the valuations were made. The resulting gain on

revaluation amounted to P5,177,605.17 and P1,251,835.70 for the years ended

December 3 1, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Part of the Company's building and improvements are being leased out to Country Bankers

Insurance Corporation (CBIC) and La Fuerza Lending Corporation. However,

still significant part of the building were used for operational purposes, therefore the

building is classified as property and equipment. Rental income amounted to P3,056,519.64
and P3,031,'720.80 for the years ended December 31,2021 and 2020, respectively.

Q.Jote 23 and26).

None of the above properties were used as collateralto any liabilities of the Company as of
the reporting period. Also, there was no indication that the above properry and equipment

are impaired, thus, no impairment loss was recognized during the years 2021 and 2020.

NOTE 15 OTHER NON.CURR.ENT ASSETS

The account consists of the following

2021 2020

Deferred tax assets

Contingency reserve fund
Deferred charges - MCIT (Note 25)

Computer software

Rental deposits

Investment-security fund
Long term investment

26,482,959.19

4,7 50,37 5.93

2,585,673.49

2,370,485.2s

362,497.75

20,445.00

2,472,212.08

5,736,387.92

2,585,673.49

2,058,654.55

335,497.'75

19,400.00

2,0 00,000.00

Total 36,572,435.61 15,206.925,19

Contingency reserve fund pertains to the Company's share in the contingency reserve funds
of pooled businesses such as National Home MRI Pool, Pag-ibig Fund lnsuiance pool and
SSS MRI Pool.
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The movements of the Company's deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2021 and2020 are
as follows:

Temporary differences 2020
Income Tax

Benefit 202 I

NOLCO
Revaluation for non-deprec iable asset

Pension beneht obligation

Allowance on impairment loss on AFS

Total

4,947,095.24

(2,548,383. l6)

73,500.00

24,0t0,746.11 24,0r0,746.11

4,947,095.24

(2,548,383.16)

73,500.00

2,4't2212.08 24,010,746.11 26,482,958.19

Computer software account represents accumulated cost incurred in developing the
Company's computer system which is amortized for 5 years. Movements of the account are

as follows:

2021 2020

Beginning

Additions
Amortization

Policy claims payable

Unclaimed maturity benefits

Applicant's deposits

Unclaimed anticipated endowments

Total

2,058,654.55

1,079,948.00

(168,117.3 0)

1,293,655.7 6

1,306,437.30

(541,438.51)

NOTE 16

Ending 2,370,485.25 2,058,654.55

Rental deposits pertains to the advance payment of the Company for the parking fee and
security deposit.

POLICY AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The account consists of the following:

2021 202A

99,157,01 1.1 I

9,416,237.90

1,317,790.95

1,414,157 .93

90,423,999.57

10,906,36 i.78
1,07 5,020.91

963 327.81

111,365,197.'79 103,369,610.07

Policy claims payable represents estimated liability for reported claims and accrual of
estimated losses as of reporting date.
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NOTE 17 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

The account consists of the following:

2021 2020

85,401,865.85

1,017,353.'12

1,148,501 .29

i0 738 '739.91

Total 127,243,927.55 98,306 ,460.77

Due to reinsurers represents reinsurance premiums payable by the Company to all its treaty
and facultative reinsurers.

Accrued expenses pertain to Company's liability to government and other accruals,
which are expected to be settled within twelve (12) months from the reporting date.

Funds held in trust during the year mainly consist of overpayment of premiums refundable
to the Company's bank clients.

Other payables consist of statutory obligation such as premium tax payable,
withholding taxes payable, documentary stamp tax payable, unearned investment policy,
SSS/Pag-ibig payable and SSS/Pag-ibig loan payables.

Other payables consist of the follou,ing:

2021 2020

Due to reinsurer

Accrued expense

Funds held in trust

Other payables

Premium tax payable (ltJote 26)

Withholding tax payable - expanded Q.Jote 26)

SSS/Pag-ibig fund payable

SSS/Pag-ibig loan payables

PHIC payable

Withholding tax payable - compensation (Note 26)
Documentary stamps payable Q.{ote 26)
Pools business

Unearned investment income - policy
Other liabilities - penalties and surcharges

12t,910,t66.78

399,022.74

312,712.57

4,622,025.46

2,571,058.90

1,287 ,g3g.29
404,235.00

12'7,699.06

81,722.61

74,789.t4

74,582.46

6,870,7 41.38

1,435,293 .29

305,750.00

126,450.90

1 07, 1 60. gg

60,050.00

i 5,543.00

280,487.29

1,537 ,263.16

Total
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NOTE 18 - PENSION BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Company has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering

substantially all of its employees. The benefits are based on years of service and

compensation at date of retirement. The fund is administered by various local banks as

trustees.

The Company fully adopted the Revised Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 19 since its

effectivity date on January 1,2013.

As of December 3 1, 2021, the Present Value of Benefit Obligation and the Fair Value of the

Plan Assets amounted to P52,811,063.00 and P45,070,915.00, respectively (P56,934,677.00

and P 42,1 40,900.00, respectively in 2020).

As of December 31,2021 and2020, the Company recognized a net pension liability (asset)

of P'7,740,148.00 and P14,793,177.00 respectively, in the statements of financial position

based on actuarial valuation report on the same dates. The total retirement expense

charged to operations in 2021 and 2020 amounted to P4,65'7,386.00 and P3,524,808.00,

respectively (Illote 24).

The reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
tlie plan assets to the recognized liability included under "Pension Benefit Obligation"
account in the statements of financial position is as follows:

2021 2020

52,811,063.00Present value of the obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Liability at beginning of year

Current service cost and interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss (gain)

56,934,677.00

(42.140,900.00)(4s,070,91 s.00)

Unfunded obligation

Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses)

1,140,148.00 14,193,711.00

Pension benefit obligation (asset) _J49]13_99- 14,793,777.00

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are shown below:

2021 2020

56,934,677.00

6,199,7 43.00

(570,552.00)

(9,752,805.00)

44,447,916.00

5,514,309.00

(1,402,099.00)

8,374,641.00

Liabiliqv at the end of the year
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The movements in the fair value of plan assets are shown below:

2021 2020

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Contributions

Interest income

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss

Current service cost

Net interest on PBO

Balance at the beginning of the year

Expense recognized

Contributions paid

Remeasurement of net DB liabiliw

Balance at the end ofthe year

The retirement plan assets consist of:

2021

790.0 (1,63 8,459.00)

42,140,900.00

2,500,000.00

1,542,357.00

(570,552.00)

541

40,191,94'7.00

3,000,000.00

1,989,501.00

( 1,402,089.00)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 45,0 70,9 1 5.00 42,140,900.00

The amount of retirement expense recorded as part of General and Adminisfrative Expenses

account in the statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

2021 2020

6,199 ,',l 43 .00

1 42 57.00

5,5 14,309.00

( 1,989,501.00)

Retirement expense 4,657,386.00 ___lr21J9!!!_

The movements in the pension benefit obligation (asset) recognized in the books are as

follows:

2021 2020

14,793,77'1.00

4,657,386.00

(2,500,000.00)

(9,211,015.00)

4,255,869.00

3,524,808.00

(3,000,000.00)

10 013 100.00

,148.00 ___ ry12)llt ]0

2020

'7,740

Amount % Amount %

Savings accounts

Receivable from employees

Long-term investments

3,895,960.00

31,426,624.00

9,749,331.00

8%

70%

22%

7 ,171,843 .00

25,37 6,843.00

17%

60%

z)709,592,214.00

70,91 5.00Total 45,0
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For determination of the retirement benefit obligation, the following actuarial assumptions

were used:

2021 2020

Discount rates

Expected rate ofreturn on plan assets

Expected rate ofsalary increases

3.66%

2.32%

3.00%

4.95%

0.86%

3.00%

NOTB 19 AGGREGATE RESERVB FOR LIFE POLICIES AI{D CONTRACTS

The aggregate reserve for life policies and contracts amounting lo P278,690,976.00 and

P299,167,364.20 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively as verified by an

independent actuary accredited by both Insurance Commission and Actuarial Society of the

Philippines have been valued in accordance with generally accepted actuarial practice and

principles together with the pertinent provisions of the Insurance Code'

The computation of aggregate reserve for life policies and contracts makes use of the

following Valuation Method namely: Unearned Premium Reserve, Commissioners Reserve

Valuation Method (CRVM) and Full Preliminary Term (FPT) and Net Level Premium

(NLP) Method. The type of method to be used per plan is identified in the Actuarial notes

and Policy forms submitted to the Insurance Commission during product approval. Below is

the table of valuation method with the corresponding product class.

Method Product Class

Unearned Premium

CRVM
FPT

NLP

Term Insurance, Assumed Risk, Pools

Limited Pay Endowment, Whole Life, Endowment

Lirnited Pay Endowment, Whole Life, Endowment

Limited Pay Life

The increase or decrease in aggregate reserve for life policies and contracts is presented net
of deferred premiums which are computed based from the factors set-up by the Insurance
Commission which is dependent on effectively month and mode of payment on a per
individual policy contract.

Due But Uncollected (DBU) Premiums is computed using the limitations set forth by the
Insurance Commission. Such limitations is identified with the mode of premium payment
and date of next premium due date.
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NOTE 20

Authorized

Common Shares- P l0 par value

Issued and fully paid

At January I

Additional subscription

At Decenrber 31

Contributed Surplus

EQUITY

20.1 Capital Stock

The roll - forward analysis of the capital stock is as follows:

202 1 2020
Number of

Shares Amount

Number of
Shares Amount

s0,000,000 00 50,000,000 500,000,000.00

33,800,996 338,009,960.00 33,800,996 338,009,960.00

33,800,996 33,800,996 338,009,960.00

______]47_,8e32201!_ 347,898,220.18

20.2 Contributed s urplus

Contributed surplus represents the original contribution of the stockholders of the Company,
in addition to the paid-up capital stock, in order to comply with the pre-licensing

requirements as provided under the Insurance Code amounting to P347,898,220.i8 as of
December 31,2021 and 2020. During 2020, the Company increase the contributed capital

amounting to P100,000,000.00 through capital infusion in compliance with the minimum net

worth requirement of P550,000,000.00 pursuant to IC CL No. 2015 - 02 - A and Section 194

of Republic Act No. 10607 (Amended Insurance Code).

20.3 Retained Earnings

Prior Period Adj ustment
Prior period adjustments are corrections of misstatements in the Company's financial
statements for one or more periods arising from a failure to use or misuse of reliable
information.

The account consists of the following

2021 2020

Adjustrnent on remeasurement of the life insurance
reserve on previous year
Adjustment on remeasurement of gains (losses) on
retirement pension asset (obligations)
Adjustment on accumulated depreciation - building
improvements
Adjustment on remeasurement of pension benefit
obligation

10,711 ,407 .53

9,211,015.00

23,827,624.71

23,521,565.00

65,499.36

(5,450,557.00)

Total
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20.4 Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure the ability of the

Company to have sufficient capital to underpin the Company's risk-taking activities,

to continue as a going concern, to maintain a strong credit rating and quality capital

adequacy ratios to ensure compliance with IC and to provide reasonable returns and benefits

to its stockholders.

The BOD has the overall responsibility for monitoring the Company's capital structure and

making the necessary adjustments to address the risks and adapt to changes in economic

conditions and regulatory requirements.

The Company's BOD and management ensure that all required ratios set by the IC are being

complied with and has set maximum limits on risk exposures,

The Company regards the following as the capital it manages as of December 31,2021:

2021 2020

Capital stock

Contributed surplus

Retained earnings

Revaluation on properties

Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets

Legal policy reserve

Remeasurement of pension benefit obligation

Total liabilities
Total stockholders' equity

Total 985,63

Furthermore, debt-to-equity ratio analysis was shown as follows

2021

5 ,166 .84 986,360,091.01

33 8,009,960.00

347,898,220.18

130,926,762.84

142,322,924.74

49,269,290.76

(3,918,898.68)

( 1 8,873,093.00)

33 8,009,960.00

347,898,220.18

193,990,884.43

123,526,559.5',7

25,654,481.04

(14,635,906.21)

(28,084,108.00)

2020

525,440,239.34

985 63s 166.84

515,636,2t2.04

986,360,091.01

Debt-to-equity ratio P0.53: P1.00 P0.52: P1.00

Margin of Solvenc),
Under the Insurance Code, an insurance compally doing business in the Philippines shall
rnaintain at all times a margin of solvency equal to P500,000.00 or two per mile of the total
amount of its insurance in force as of the preceding year on all policies, except for term
insurance, whichever is higher. The margin of solvency is the excess value of admitted
assets (as defined under the same code) exclusive of paid-up capital, over the amount of
liabilities, unearned premiums and reinsurance reserve.
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The amounts of estimated non-admitted assets, as defined in the Code, are as follows

202t 2020

Loans and receivables

Properfy and equipment

Other assets

6,521,818.81

2,029,361.57

6,461,306.77

3,840,099.01

16,803,445.2051,710,s 19.39

Total 46,26 1,699.77 27, 104,850.98

If an insurance company failed to meet the minimum required MOS, the Insurance

Commission is authorized to suspend or revoke all certificates of authority granted to such

companies, its officers and agents, and no new business shall be done by and for such

company until its authority is restored by the Insurance Commission'

The final amount of the margin of solvency can be determined only after accounts of the

Company have been examined by the Insurance Commissioner specifically as to admitted

and non-admitted assets as defined in the Insurance Code.

Unimpaired Capital Requirement
In August 7, 2008, the Insurance Commission issued IMC 22-2008 providing that for
purposes of determining compliance with the law, rules and regulations requiring that the

paid-up capital should remain intact and unimpaired at all times, the statements of financial
position should show that the net worth or equity is at least equal to the actual paid-up

capital. The company has complied with the unimpaired capital requirement.

Capitalization Reouirements
Pursuant to Chapter III, Title 1, Section 194 of the Republic Act No. 10607, otherwise

known as "The Insurance Code", a domestic insurance company already doing business in

the Philippines shall have the foliowing net wofth:

Minimum Statutory Net Worth Compliance Date

250 Million
550 Million
900 Million
1.3 Billion

June 30,2013

December 31,2016
December 31,2019
December 31,2022

The Company is compliant with the minimum statutory net worth of 900 million
The Company's net worth is as follows:

Paid-up capital

Retained earnings

Contributed surplus

Revaluation surplus

33 8,009,960.00

130p26,'/62.94

347.898,220.18

142,3 22,924.74

Total
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NOTE 21

NOTE 22

POLICY CLAIMS AND LOSSBS

The account consists of the following:

Creditor's group life (CGL)

Group term

Standard

Group permanent

Total

PRODUCTION EXPENSE

The account consists of the following:

Salaries and wages

Year-end bonus and gifts

Representation and entertainment

Transportation and travel

Postage, mailing and communication

Stationery and supplies used

Reinsurance premiums

Fuel and lubricants

Rentals

Repairs and maintenance

Light, heat and utilities
Miscellaneous expense

2021 2020

2'71 ,403,710.63
159,85 5,269.5 8

1,186,000.00

119 7 59.95

158,183,786.42

143,333,472.42

32t,643.54

t24,298.01

l?,) \ 64,7 40.16 301,963,200.39

2021 2020

21,081,240.59

4,164,5'77.54

3,399,626.34

3,054,93 8. 1 5

1,855,139.27

1,019,779.24

1,0c0,000.00

446,836.23

228,897.00

158,596.',|7

130,623.11

10 15 1 .66

20,773,528.13

5,288,095.45

5,605,974.10

3,146,086.21

| ,722,97 5.16

926,269.97

2,502,008.91

443,805.30

391,423.91

126,0t6.36

88,718.45

3s3 100.00

Total 36,550,405.90 41,368,001 .95

Miscellaneous expense represents various expenses incurred by the Company incidental to
its furrction and which are not classified on the above Iisted production expenses.
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NOTE 23 OTHER INCOME. NET

The account consists of the following:

Investment income

Rentals (Note 14,28)

Dividend income Q'Jote 11)

Interest income on deposits (Note 7)

Loss on sale of investments Q'{ote 1 1)

Gain on sale of motor car (Note 14)

Miscellaneous income

Bonds (l{ote 12)

Policy

Long-term investment

Total

Details of the above investment income account are as follows

2021

2021 2020

25,031,277.33

3,056,519.64

1,529,928.76

1,465,905.88

(836,874.31)

218,337.46

3 50,000.00

196,619.62

30,465,094.76 il 15q0q104

2020

26,802,809.49

3,031,720.80

40,764.54

7 47 ,17 8 .59

22,9'78,601.90

2,052,6-15.43

22,298,606.61

2,893,006.83

1, 61 1,196.05

Total 25,031,2',77 .33

Miscellaneous income pertains to the interest income from mortgage of loan.

26,802,809.49
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NOTE 24 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

The account consists of the following:

Employees benefit

Representation and entertainment

Salaries and wages

Depreciation and amortization (Notes 14,15)

Retirement benefits (I\lote 18)

Year-end bonus and gifts

Light, heat and utilities

SSS premiums, pag-ibig and medicare

Transportation and travel

Taxes and licenses (Note 26)

Directors'per diem Qllote 27)

Penalties and surcharges

Repairs and maintenance

Postage, mailing and communications

Stationery and supplies used

Professional, legal and audit fees

Donations and contributions

Insurance

Promotions and advertising

Membership fees and association dues

Bank charges

Rentals

Photocopying

Miscellaneous expense

2021 2020

32,447,201.28

16,283,764.05

11,454,647.97

5,982,652.07

4,657,386.00

4,583,497.20

3,392,904.67

3,126,462.30

2,939,625.70

2,6',72,207.83

2,027,777 .60

1,991,345.86

1,712,871.07

1,709,828.72

1,441,900.94

1,441,699.98

1,156,000.00

673,904.88

645,186.59

300,421.05

25',7,306.92

I 5 8,03 5.74

94,259.43

253 608.45

21,228,602.61

15,836,016.40

11,757 ,921.53

5,319,440.11

3,524,808.00

4,526,301.70

3,621,399.26

2,623,746.23

2,012,656.79

2,409,219.19

1,461,1 1 1 .03

1,681,835.51

1,238,043.7 5

1,696,481.7 6

1,879.7 6

1,709,790.00

5 80,203.00

304,572.01

1,850,282.08

50't,526.10

t26,0t7.2t
15 1,120.00

820.00

225,326.32

Total 101,404,496.30 83,8 5 5 ,120.35

Penalties and surcharges represent payment of the Company for the tax deficiency on
income tax, VAT, expanded withholding tax and documentary stamp tax for taxable period
January 1 to December 31,2018 and late payments of VAT, income tax, withholding taxes,
documentary stamp tax and premium tax for the year.

Miscellaneous expense represents various expenses incurred by the Company incidental to
their function and which are not classified on the above listed general and administrative
expenses.
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NOTE 25 TAXATION

The Company's income tax was computed as follows:

Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCID - 25oh

Income (loss) before income tax

Add: Non-deductible expense

Representation expense

Penalties and surcharges

Donations and contributions

Loss on sale of stocls

Retirement expense

Total

Less:Income already subjected to tax

Investment income

Interest income on deposits

Dividend income

Total

Taxable income Q.Jet operating loss)

before NOLCO and Deferred MCIT
Less:Applied NOLCO

Taxable income (loss)

RCIT rate

Provision tbr income tax

Limits

(87,014,861.10) 19,377,010.53

202 1 2020

14,564,456.62

1,991,345.86

1,156,000.00

836,874.31

(1,542,357.00)

16,723,916.67

1,681,83s. s r

144,524.33

( 1 ,989,501 .00)

17,006,319.79 16,560,775.51

22,978,601.90

1,465,905.88

1,529,928.76

23,909,802.66

741,178.59

40,164.54

25 24,697,745.79

(96,042,984.45) 11,240,040.25

145.4

(96,042,984.45)

25%

8,271,894.',z9

30% I 25%

-NIL-

Enterta inment, Amusement and

Recreation Expense (EAR)
Production expense

Gen. and Admin. Expense

Total

Retirement:

Retirement expense

Current service cost (CSC)

3,399,626.34

t6,283,164.05

19.683 3943e 5,1 18,933 .77

Actual Limit Excess

884,1 19.13

4,234,814.64

2,515,507.21

.4t1

56.62

4,657,396.00

6,199,743.00

4,657,396.00

,743.00

(1Non - deductible
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Donations and Contrbutions:

Taxable income

Add:Non- Deductfole

Repre sentation expense

Fines and penahies

Retirement expense

Less: Income already subjected to tax

Investment income

Interest income on deposits

Dividend income

Taxable income before deduction of Donations and contributions

Limit on Donations and Conrtribution

Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) - l0z6

Total underwriting income

Investment income - policy

Rentals

Gain on transportation equipment

Miscellaneous income

Total

Less : U nderwriting expenses

Gross income subject to MCIT
MCIT rate

Total

517,218,864.71 478,278.729.89

(87,074,867 .70)

14,564,456.62

1,991,345.86

(1,542,357.00)

22,978,60r.90

1,465,905.88

1,529,928.76

(98,035,858.76)

5%

-NIL-

202 1 2020

511,893,377.18

2,052,675.43

3,056,519.64

477,807,382.64

2,893,006.83

3,031,720.80

350,000.00

196,619.62216,292.46

525,513,336. 13 395,311 ,903.5 5

(8,294,471.42)

1%

82,906.826.34

2%t1%

-NIL- 1,243,602.40

Page 53 of59



Creditable income tax

Income tax due

Les s : Tax credit/payments

Prior year

Applied MCIT
Creditable tax - current

Quarter tax payments

Total

2021 2020

489,354.79

2,276,421.07

2,276,421.07

340,041.50

149.313.29

282,686.42

1 73,0 10. 1 9

Total 945,051.40 2,,765,775.86

Creditable income tax (945,0s1.40) (48935439)

Deferred tax - MCIT 2021 2020

Incurred in2019, carry forward benefit up to 2022

lncurred tn2019, applied :r:,2020

2,949,835.20 2,949,835.20

(3 64,t61.71) (364,r6t.71)

Total ,< 85,673.49

Net Operatins Loss Carry-Over (NOLCO.) 202r 2020

Incurred ln2027, carry forward benefrt up to 2026* 96,042,984.45

96,042,984.45

*Five (5) year period of entitlement to deduct net operating loss incured for taxable years

2020 and 2021 in compliance with section 4 (bbbb) of Republic Act (R.A.) No. 11494,

otherwise known as "Bayanihan to Recover as One Act" which states that:

"(bbbb) Notwithstanding the provision of existing laws to the contrary, the net operating
loss of the business or enterprise for taxable years 2020 and 2021 shall be carried over as

deduction from gross income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years immediately
following the year of such loss; Provided, that this subsection sliall remain in effect even
after expiration of this act.
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NOTE 26
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATIOI{ REOUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL
R.EVENUE GIR)

presented below is the supplementary information which is required by the BIR under its

existing revenue regulationi to be disclosed as part of the notes to the financial statements.

This supplementary information is not a required disclosure under PFRS.

26.1 Requirements under Revenue Regulations No- l5-2010

In compliance with BIR Revenue Regulations No.15-2010 (amending certain provision of

Sec. 2 of RR No. 21-2002), which requires addition to the disclosures mandated under the

philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and such other standards and convention,

the notes to the financial statements shall include information on taxes, duties and license

fees paid or accrued during the taxable year, pafticularly on the following which is

applicable to the CompanY:

Premium Tax
Th. C.*p"ry paid and accrued a total premium tax of P9,041,112.39 and P2,571,058.90

during the year ended December 31,2021.

Taxes on Importation
The Company did not have any irnportation during the year

Excise Tax
The Company did not have any transaction subject to excise tax in 2021

Documentary Stamp Tax
tn" Co*puny paid and accrued documentary stamp tax on life insurance policy amounting

to P527,860.00 and P74,582.46 respectively.

Taxes and Licenses
The details of taxes and licenses account are as follows:

Local
Business permit

Real property taxes

Licenses

Municipaltaxes
Community tax

Others

Sub-total

National
Annual registration fee

1,477,176.71

715,824.34

2 8 1 ,070.00

161,360.28

14,380.16

15,895.7 4

2 671 707.83

500.00

Total 2,672,207.83

Others consist of payrnent for certifications, legal research fees, registration, and other
necessary expenses.
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Withholding taxes

Withholding tax on compensation

Expanded withholding tax

Benefits paid or provided

lnsurance expense

Production expenses

Total

Paid Accrued

1,110,969.14 74,789.14

1,287 ,939.295,05 1 .83 5.1 5

Total 6, 162,804.29 1,3 62,728.43

Finaltaxes
The Company did not pay any final tax during the year

Deficiencv Tax Assessments and Tax Cases

For the year ended December 31, 2OZl, the Company has no final deficiency tax

assessments from the BIR nor does it have any tax cases outstanding or pending in courts or

bodies outside of the BIR in any of the open taxable years.

26.2 Requirements under Revenue Regulations No. 19-2011

Revenue Regulations No. 19-2011 requires schedules of taxable revenues and other

non-operating income, costs of sales and/or services, itemized deductions and other

significant tax information, to be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The amounts of taxable revenues and income, and deductible costs and expenses presented

below are based on relevant tax regulations issued by the BIR, hence, may not be the same

as the amounts of revenues reflected in the 2021 statements of comprehensive income,

which is based on PFRS.

Taxable Revenue
The Company had taxable revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021 amounting to

P511,893,377.18 mainly arising from insurance premiums.

Deductible Cost of Services
Deductible costs of services under the regular tax regime for the years ended

December 37,2021comprise of the following:

433,921,83 1 .85

57 ,556,605.59
34,034,898.69

srs al1 116 n
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Taxable Other Income
The Company has net taxable other income subject to regular income tax rate as follows

Rentals

Investment income - policy

Miscellaneous income

Employees benefit

Salaries and wages

Retirement benefits (Note 18)

Depreciation and amortization (Notes 14, 15)

Year-end bonus and gifts

Repre sentation and entertainment

Light, heat and utilities

SSS premiums, Pag-ibig and medicare

Transportation and travel

Taxes and licenses (Note 26)

Directors' per diem

Repairs and maintenance

Postage, mailing and communications

Stationery and supplies used

Professional, legal and audit fees

Insurance

Promotions and advertising

Membership fees and association dues

Miscellaneous expense

Rentals

Photocopying

Bank charges

3,056,519.64

2,052,67 5.43

2t8,337.46

Total 5,32',7,532.53

Itemized Deductions
The amounts of itemized deductions under the regular tax regime for the year ended

December 3 1, 2021 follow:

32,447,201.28

11,454,647.97

6,199,743.00

5,982,652.07

4,583,497.20

4,234,814.64

3,392,904.67

3,126,462.30

2,939,625.70

2,672,207.83

2,027,777 .60

1,712,871.07

1,709,828.72

1,441,900.94

1,441,699.98

673,904.88

645,196.59

300,421.05

253,609.45

158,035.74

94,259.43

257,306.92

Total 87,75 0,558.03

26.3 Requirements under Revenue Regulations No. 34-2020

The Company is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party
transactions provided under RR No. 34-2020.
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NOTE 27

In the ordinary course of business, the Company entered into a lease agreement with
Country Bankers Insurance Corporation (CBIC) and La Fuerza Lending Corporation who
are both affiliates. The three companies are related parties due to common directorship and

officer ship (lt{ote 9).

The statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income include the

following amounts resulting from the above transactions with related parties:

202 1 2020

Amount of transaction Outstandrng balance

Amount of
tramaction Qutqtadng lqlqace

Under cornmon control

Country Bankers Insurance Corporation
Income

Accounts and other receivable

Additions

Collected

2,975,860.80 2,975,860.80

n,36322'7.83

La Fuerza Corporation
Income

Accorurts and other receivable

Additions

Collected

s5,860.00

1s2,762.97

(1212s1 4'7)

4r,059 55

n,40428'7.38

r,1 96,541.00

1 1.912,320 09

(r,919,744.&)

55,860.00

101,349.23

(l 13,987.4s)

1,r65,029.50

Receivables to affiliates - These are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are collectible
within a year from the reporting period.

The Company provide per diem amounting to P2,027,7'77.60 and P1,461,111.03 in
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, to its directors and other key management
personnel.

NOTE 28 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY

28.1 Lease Commitments

The Company has lease agreements, which are renewable annually with CBIC,
La Fuerza Lending Corp., the lessees.

The future annual minimum rental income not later than one year amounted to
P3,056,5 t9.64.

Rental income amounted to P3,056,519.64 and p3,031,i20.80 for the years ended
December 31,2021 and2020, respectively (Nlote 23).

28.2 Contingencies

The Company is contingently liable for existing Iawsuits and claims from and against third
parties, arising from the ordinary course of business. Management believes that the ultimate
liabiliry for these lawsuits and claims, if any, would noi b. material in relation to the
financial position and operating results of the Company.
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NOTE 29 EARNINGS AND BOOK VALUE PER SHARE

Computation of Earnings Per Share and Book Value Per Share are summarized below:

2021 2020

Net income (loss)

Average outstanding common shares

Earnings (loss) per share

Total stockholders' equity

Outstanding common shares

(63,064,121.59)

33,800,996.00

16,211,915.82

33,800,996.00

(Pl.87) P0.48

2021 2020

985,635,166.84

33,800,996.00

986,360,091.01

33,800,996.00

Book value per share P29.16:1 P29.18 : 1

NOTE 30 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD

An entity shall adjust the amounts recognized in its financial statements to reflect adjusting
events after the reporting period.

An entify shall not adjust the amounts recognized in its financial statements to reflect
non-adjusting events after the repofting period. If non-adjusting events after the reporting
period are material, non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of financial statements. Accordingly, an entity shall disclose the following for each
material category of non-adjusting event after the reporling period:

a) the nature ofthe event; and
b) an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 16, 2022.which is the date of
the financial statements were available to be issued.
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